BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Meeting held on 15 July 2024 at 6.00 pm

Present:-

Cllr P Canavan – Chair Cllr L Dedman – Vice-Chair

Present: Cllr J Edwards, Cllr H Allen, Cllr J Richardson, Cllr J Salmon,

Cllr P Slade, Cllr A-M Moriarty and Cllr C Weight

Also in L attendance:

Louise Bates, Healthwatch Manger joined virtually

15. Apologies

Apologies were received from Cllrs Farr, Gillett and Matthews.

16. <u>Substitute Members</u>

Cllr Clare Weight substituted for Cllr Matthews on this occasion.

17. Declarations of Interests

Cllr Joe Salmon declared a personal interest as an employee of Dorset Healthcare and Cllr Hazel Allen declared a personal interest as an employee of University Hospitals Dorset NHS Foundation Trust.

18. Minutes

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 20 May 2024 were confirmed as an accurate record and signed by the Chair.

19. Action Sheet

The action sheet was noted.

20. Public Issues

There were no public issues on this occasion.

21. Adult Social Care Transformation Business Case

The Corporate Director for Wellbeing introduced the item and the Director for Adult Social Care and the Director for Commissioning presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'A' to these Minutes in the Minute Book.

Adult Social Care (ASC) services locally and nationally had faced significant challenges in recent years, with an ageing population, increased demand for support and more complex needs. As a result, the Council was holding significant risk in relation to its ability to deliver statutory responsibilities within the available budget, to adults and their families who require support. The nature of these challenges means that long term, sustainable change was needed to ensure that BCP Council's ASC services were modern, preventative, fit for the future and affordable.

The report set out the ASC Transformation Business Case for Cabinet's consideration and recommendation to Council. It included plans to establish the Fulfilled Lives Programme comprising four priority projects, with a proposed investment of £2.9m which would lead to improved outcomes for adults who draw on support within the BCP Council area. It was anticipated that the one-off investment would lead to recurring savings of approximately £3.5m.

The Committee discussed the report, including:

- In response to a concern that the objective was to reduce the amount of residential and sheltered accommodation on offer, the Committee was advised that the purpose of the transformation was to ensure the right level of care model was used to ensure the response was appropriate to the need presented.
- In response to a request for clarity, the Committee was advised of the different elements reablement had to offer and how it could improve the lives of those in need. It was also highlighted that a recovery model was needed and that no long-term support should be decided until they were out of a hospital environment.
- In response to a query regarding the funding of reablement, the Committee was advised that it formed part of the Better Care Fund received from NHS England.
- In response to a query the Committee was advised that even though the business case did include financial drivers for change, it was also about the need to modernise the service, focusing on prevention and empowerment and ensuring the fulfilled lives aspects of the transformation were met.
- In response to a query regarding carers and whether the transformation business case was going to improve the allowance and working conditions for them, the Committee was advised of the revised Carers Strategy which was approved in 2022 and what that put in place to support carers across BCP.
- In response to a concern regarding the reliance on third party providers, the Committee was advised that it was hoped that the council owned company, Tricuro would increase its influence on the local market, however it was acknowledged that this would require investment. It was also highlighted that the case focused on prevention and reablement to enable transformation by building on what was already available with Tricuro.

- In response to queries regarding the low levels of care being provided sitting at 41% with the Local Government Association (LGA) recommending this should be closer to 15%, the Committee was advised what could be done to reduce this figure, including the increased use of technology where appropriate and reaching out to the voluntary and community sectors to see what support they could offer as opposed to the regulated homecare services the Council provided.
- The Healthwatch Manager advised that people often struggled to know what help was available and how to access it, so how would awareness be raised and in response the Committee was advised of the difficulties in this area and the work that was ongoing to improve access to services by refreshing all webpages and carers information online which was a process being undertaken with carers.
- In response to a query regarding how transformation progress would be measured by the outcomes for users, the Committee was advised of the work regarding the three conversations and the feedback that was collected from users through that process had been positive during the pilots. The Committee was also given information regarding the coproduction being utilised.
- In response to a query regarding the savings and efficiencies, the Committee was advised that these would come through the changes in the fulfilled lives programme and that a combination of all the elements of the transformation programme would ensure cumulative savings were apparent.
- In response to a query regarding the Mosaic software, the Committee was advised that whilst Tricuro did not currently feed in or have access to the system, it was planned that they and other providers would be able to in the future.
- In response to a query about the identification and management of any risks, the Committee was advised that the possible risks would be monitored and there would be a break in the programme every six months to reflect, test and challenge. The importance of the Committee's scrutiny role during the programme was highlighted.

Cllr Brown joined the meeting at 18:50pm.

The Committee discussed the recommendations, and a member suggested the following additions be included in the identified programme risks:

- The current lack of feed from Tricuro and other providers into Mosaic or Dorset Intelligence and Insight Service (DiiS)
- An explicit target for the percentage of commissioning that was given to Tricuro with the idea that it increased annually.

In response to the second recommendation, the Committee was advised that this would form part of a strategic commissioning framework about how

to BCP intended to work with Tricuro and other market providers and was not appropriate to be included in the programme at this time.

The Committee discussed the first addition around data feeds, and it was highlighted that the Mosaic provider portal programme was included within the transformation and that it could be recommended that Cabinet consider the risk when recommending to Council.

A Committee Member requested Officers highlighted key risks and Key Performance Indicators be included in future reports to enable the Committee to effectively monitor and scrutinise progress. **ACTION.**

The Chair concluded by advising he would work on a form of words with the Director for Wellbeing to take to Cabinet around the data.

Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee RECOMMENDED that Cabinet recommends that Council:

- a) Approves the business case for a new adult social care transformation delivery model to improve outcomes for residents and to achieve financial efficiencies and savings enabled by investment.
- b) Agrees to the establishment of a formal transformation programme; 'Fulfilled Lives'.
- c) Agrees to the proposed investment of £2.9M, with Corporate Management Board being provided 6-monthly stage reviews on the progress of the transformation programme.
- d) Invites the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee to provide regular scrutiny of progress towards benefits and sustainable change.

<u>Post meeting note</u> – in consultation with the Director of Wellbeing, the Chair on behalf of the Committee amended the recommendation d) to Cabinet as follows:

d) Invites the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee to provide regular scrutiny of progress towards benefits and sustainable change. In particular, the Committee be invited to review the progress against the four priority areas of the Fulfilled Lives programme and the risks and opportunities of data with ASC transformation.

22. <u>Tricuro Business Plan: Delivery Progress</u>

The Director of Commissioning gave a brief introduction and a Director from Tricuro presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'B' to these Minutes in the Minute Book.

The report provided information to members of the Committee on progress to date in the delivery of the Tricuro Business Plan objectives.

The Committee discussed the report, including:

- In response to a query regarding reablement, the Committee was advised of the benefits of it and the need to reduce the delay in getting reablement through reconfiguring the funding from long term to short term and ensuring that the offer was reaching into the acute hospitals to expediate the process of supporting people in need.
- In response to a query about how reablement can be advertised and promoted, the Committee was advised of the plans including changing market plans and terminology, together with fuller career progression set out for staff.
- In response to a query regarding recruitment and retention, the Committee was advised that staff turnover was around 5% which was less than sector average of 11%. The Committee was advised that Tricuro's absence rate low was also lower than national average.
- The Chair requested Tricuro provide statistics regarding the number of people who were using its services to a future meeting. ACTION.
- When considering data and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), the Committee was advised that Tricuro provided a direct feed on several KPIs to BCP which was refreshed on a daily basis. The Committee was advised that this data could be used to track a person's journey through the service.

RESOLVED that the Committee note and scrutinise progress against the key short-term objectives contained in the Tricuro Business Plan.

The Healthwatch Manager left the meeting online at 7:30pm.

23. Future of Public Health in BCP Council

The Corporate Director for Wellbeing presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'C' to these Minutes in the Minute Book.

The Portfolio Holder for Customers, Communications and Culture joined virtually for this item.

The report provided an update to the Committee on the development of BCP Council's public health function and the process of separating from the shared service agreement with Dorset Council.

The Portfolio Holder for Customers, Communications and Culture addressed the Committee and made a plea that when considering the scope of the role of the Director of Public Health, consideration was given to putting arts and culture at the centre of any policies and strategies and provided the Committee with examples of where art and culture had helped improve the health and wellbeing of people across BCP.

The Committee discussed the report, including:

- In response to a query regarding the scope of the role, the Committee was advised that it was a statutory role and that there was a wide range of Director of Public Health roles across local authorities, however there was a core set of responsibilities which must be achieved.
- It was noted that the Director of Public Health would be required to work closely with most services across BCP Council using data and analysis to help strengthen and improve the health and wellbeing of its residents.
- In response to a concern about losing the Dorset countywide overview, the Committee was reassured that BCP would continue to be an important part of the Dorset Integrated Care System and where appropriate, working collaboratively, sharing practices and learning from each other in a new partnership way of working.

RESOLVED that the Committee note the report.

Cllr Jackie Edwards left the meeting at 7:50pm.

24. Items for Information

The following reports been circulated for information only:

- University Hospitals Dorset (UHD) Maternity paper
- Adult Social Care Charging Policy Additions

The Chair advised the Committee that whilst no one had been requested to attend from UHD, should any members have any questions regarding the report, then they should email them to the Chair who will coordinate responses. A deadline of a week was given to submit any questions. **ACTION.**

The Vice Chair highlighted and congratulated UDH on the reduction in midwifery vacancies to zero and the Director of Adult Social Care advised she would feed that back. **ACTION.**

25. <u>Portfolio Holder Update</u>

The Portfolio Holder for Health and Wellbeing provided a verbal update which included his work around the items which had been discussed at the meeting.

The Portfolio Holder detailed the positive meetings he had attended in relation to Tricuro and the outcome of those were provided to the Committee.

The Committee was advised of the work regarding budgets, service improvements and structures.

The Portfolio Holder advised of his attendance at an Adult Safeguarding Board learning event and the positive outcomes of the useful and informative event.

The Committee was advised that the Portfolio Holder had Chaired the Health and Wellbeing Board and what was covered during that meeting was detailed, including the changes in maternity provision report.

In response to a query regarding any concerns, particularly regarding the changes in the hospitals, the Committee was advised of the need to ensure the transformation programme delivered complimented the changes for health partners.

26. Forward Plan

The Chair provided feedback to the Committee on the forward planning workshop including:

- the way scrutiny was going to be undertaken in the future
- the introduction of a focus lens
- to keep information only items off Committee agendas by having additional Teams based briefings
- Using key lines of enquiry forms to refine scope for scrutiny items.

The Chair also advised of the intention to circulate the long list of scrutiny items gathered to seek views of the priorities of Committee Members.

RESOLVED that the Committee agree:

- The proposed lens of 'Equality of access to person centred integrated care'; and
- To schedule alternate month Teams based briefing meetings.

The meeting was advised that the Director of Commissioning was taking early retirement and the Chair on behalf of the Committee, thanked him for all his work and wished him well in his retirement.

The meeting ended at 8.15 pm

CHAIR

